
 

 

 

 

Council 
Wednesday 26 June 2002, 7.30 pm 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Council held on 29 May 2002  

3 - 6 

3. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest in any matters on the agenda for 
the meeting. 
 

 

4. Mayor's Announcements   

5. Executive Report   

 To receive the Leader’s report on the work of the Executive since the 
Council meeting on 29 May 2002. 
 

7 - 10 

6. Budget and Policy Framework   

 1) Adult Learning Plan 
 

a) To receive the draft Adult Learning Plan 2002-2003  
 
b) The Executive Member for Education (Councillor Ward) 

will move adoption. 
 
2) Policy & Performance Plan 2002/2003 
 

a) To receive the draft Policy & Performance Plan 
2002/2003  

 
b) The Leader of the Council (Councillor Bettison) will 

move adoption. 
 

11 - 164 

7. Release of Section 106 Funding   

 To consider the report of the Director of Corporate Services. 
 

165 - 168 



8. Question Submitted Under Council Procedure Rule 10.2   

 Notice has been received of the following question by Councillor Jones 
to the Executive Member for Planning & Transportation:- 
 
“With reference to the distributed housing provision in policy H2 of the 
Structure Plan, is she able to give a categorical assurance that there 
are no plans to significantly change the figures for the relative allocation 
of housing between the Berkshire Authorities from those listed?” 
 

 

9. Appointments to External Organisations   

 To appoint Councillor Bettison as the Council’s representative on the 
Local Government Association Rural Commission, to replace Councillor 
Mills. 
 

 

10. Date of Next Meeting   

 To consider a proposal to change the date of the next Council meeting 
to Tuesday 30 July 2002. 
 

 

 



 

COUNCIL 
29 MAY 2002 

(7.30 pm to 10.20 pm) 
 
 
 

Present: Councillors Adams, Mrs Ballin, Barnard, Beadsley, Bettison, 
Blatchford, Ms Brown, Browne, Edger, Egan, Fawcett, Finnie, Flood, 
Glasson, Harrison, Miss Haydon, Mrs Hayes, Henfrey, Kendall, 
McCormack, McCracken, Mrs Mattick, Mills, North, Piasecki, Mrs Pile, 
Mrs Ryder, Sargeant, Simonds, Thompson, Turrell, Wade, Wallace, 
Ward and Worrall  

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 Councillors Birch, Mrs Birch, Grayson, Jones and Mrs Shillcock 
 
 

  
THE MAYOR, COUNCILLOR MRS HAYES, IN THE CHAIR 

 
 
17. Minutes 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 1 May 2002 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Mayor, subject to an amendment to 
record the apologies of Councillors Browne and Henfrey and, on page 7, to indicate 
that Councillor Kendall is Vice Chairman of the Select Committee on Corporate & 
Resources Issues. 
 
 

18. 
 
 
 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
No member of the Council declared any personal or prejudicial interest in any item 
of business on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
 

19. Mayor’s Announcements 
 
(i) Bracknell Team Ministry – Golden Jubilee Service  
 
 The Mayor was grateful to all Members and officers who would be supporting 

the joint Golden Jubilee Service with Bracknell Team Ministry on Sunday 2 
June 2002 at Holy Trinity Church, Bracknell.  This would commence at 
10.30am and be followed by a reception at The Grange Hotel. 

 
(ii) Organ Donor Registration 
 
 The Mayor was pleased to announce that the NHS Organ Donor Register 

had informed her that the number of new recruits gained from the Council’s 
campaign last year had totalled 7,854.  

 
(iii) Lexcel Accreditation 
 
 The Mayor advised the Council that the Legal Services Section had been 

successful in achieving Lexcel accreditation, certifying that the Section was 

3

Agenda Item 2



 

implementing the Law Society’s Practice Management Standards.  The Legal 
Services Section was the first among the Berkshire unitary authorities to have 
secured Lexcel accreditation.  The Borough Solicitor was asked to pass the 
congratulations of the Council to his staff. 

 
 

20. Executive Report 
 
The Leader of the Council reported on the main activities of the Executive since the 
meeting on 1 May 2002 and attention was drawn to the following topics: 
 
Executive Meeting 21 May 2002 
 
The Executive had considered and made decisions on the following important 
matters: 
 
 Children’s Services – Action Plan 
 Voluntary Sector Compact: Good Practice Guidelines on Volunteering and 
     Community Action 
 Food Law Enforcement 
 Lily Hill Park Lottery Grant 
 Community Safety Strategy 
 
Negotiations were now underway between officers and DTLR officials on the Public 
Service Agreement for Bracknell Forest.  
 
The Constitution Review Group was due to meet on 30 May 2002 to consider 
proposed amendments to the Constitution.  These would be reported to the Council 
for decision in due course. 
 
The consultation period on the draft Community Strategy had been extended 
following discussion at the Co-ordination Select Committee.  The draft would be 
considered by the Executive and submitted to the Council for adoption in July 2002. 
 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
 
The Leader outlined the process and timetable for the forthcoming Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment.  The framework for self-assessment had been received 
from the Audit Commission and was to be completed and submitted by 1 July 2002.  
An on-site inspection would commence on 15 July for two weeks and feedback 
would be given to the Council at the end of July.  
 
The Leader of the Council and appropriate Executive Members responded to 
questions on the Executive Report.   
 
Section 106 Funding - Lily Hill Park Lottery Grant 
 
The Leader moved a recommendation from the Executive regarding the release of 
Section 106 funds as part of the project for the restoration and landscaping of part of 
Lily Hill Park.  A provisional award had been made by the Heritage Lottery Fund and 
the second stage of the application required the release of Section 106 funding held 
for recreational purposes. 
 
RESOLVED that the release of £141,000 of Section 106 funds be approved as a 
contribution to the cost of landscape restoration at Lily Hill Park.   

4



 

 
 

21. Budget & Policy Framework 
 
(i) Food Law Enforcement Plan 2002/2003 
 
 Following a presentation by the Director of Environment, the Executive 

Member submitted the Draft Food Law Enforcement Plan 2002/2003 for 
consideration. 

 
RESOLVED on the proposition of Councillor Mills, seconded by Councillor 
North, that the Food Law Enforcement Plan 2002/2003 be adopted. 

 
(ii) Community Safety Strategy 2002-2005 
 
 Following a presentation by the Director of Environment the Executive 

Member submitted the Draft Community Safety Strategy 2002-2005 for 
consideration. 

 
 RESOLVED on the proposition of Councillor Mills, seconded by Councillor 

North, that the Community Safety Strategy 2002-2005 be adopted. 
 
 

22. Annual Report of the Voluntary Sector Champion 
 
The Voluntary Sector Champion, Councillor Mrs Ryder, submitted her first annual 
report and responded to questions thereon. 
 
RESOLVED that the annual report of the Voluntary Sector Champion be received 
and that Councillor Mrs Ryder be thanked for the work she is doing to strengthen the  
Council’s links with the voluntary sector. 
 
 

23. Motion Submitted under Council Procedure Rule 11 
 
Motion 1/2002, as set out in the agenda for the meeting, was moved by Councillor 
Glasson and seconded by Councillor Beadsley. 
 
Councillor Bettison, seconded by Councillor McCracken, then moved an amendment 
as set out below.  The amendment was put to the vote and declared carried.  The 
substantive motion was then put to the vote and it was 
 
RESOLVED  that having commissioned an expert report on housing needs in the 
Borough the Council recognises the housing needs of its community and will seek, 
through its emerging housing strategy, to deliver a sustainable broad-based 
programme of affordable housing that fulfils the aspirations of its residents. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                                          MAYOR 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

(ITEM 5) 
 

COUNCIL 
26 JUNE 2002 

 

 
EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 
 
Since the report made to the Council meeting on 29 May, the Executive has met on 18 June 
to take Executive decisions and these are brought to the attention of the Council in this 
report. 
 
1 POLICY AND PERFORMANCE PLAN  
 

Under the Local Government Act 1999 all Local Authorities are required to publish a 
Best Value Performance Plan each year.  The Executive has now considered a final 
draft of the Policy and Performance Plan which incorporates the Best Value 
Performance Plan for 2002/03.  Although this is a final draft and is subject to further 
amendment when additional key information becomes available from the Audit 
Commission, the Executive nevertheless recommends adoption by the Council at this 
stage subject to further updating as necessary.  This plan forms part of the Council’s 
Policy Framework which must be adopted by the full Council and therefore appears 
as a separate item on the agenda for tonight’s meeting. 

 
 
2 ADULT LEARNING PLAN 2002/03 
 

The Council’s Adult Learning Plan is also part of the Council’s Policy Framework and 
appears elsewhere on the agenda for tonight’s meeting.  It has been approved by the 
Executive and, subject to adoption by the Council, will be the basis for receiving grant 
funding from the Learnings and Skills Council Adult and Community Learning Fund. 

 
 
3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT AND STRATEGY DOCUMENT 
 

Treasury Management in Local Government is regulated by the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management in Local Authorities.  This Code was substantially 
revised in 2001 in order to reflect developments since the previous update in 1996.  
The Code requires a report to be submitted to the Executive to approve the adoption 
of the new revised Code and for the Executive to receive the following reports on an 
annual basis: 
 
Annual Strategy and Plan for the Forthcoming Year 
Annual Year End Report. 
 
The Executive has adopted the key recommendations in the Code of Practice 
described above and has adopted a Treasury Management Policy Statement stating 
the policy and objectives of Treasury Management activities as well as appropriate 
Treasury Management practices which describe how the organisation will seek to 
achieve the policy and objectives and manage and control the activities involved.  
Reports on Treasury Management policies, practices and activities will be brought to 
the Executive together with an annual strategy and plan and year end report and 
these documents will be published as part of the Executive agenda.  Responsibility 
for the implementation and monitoring of Treasury Management policies and 

7

Agenda Item 5



 

practices will be undertaken by the Executive and the execution and administration of 
Treasury Management decisions will be delegated to the Borough Finance Officer 
acting in accordance with the policy statement and other relevant standards as 
described above.   
 
 

4 PROVISIONAL OUTTURN REVENUE EXPENDITURE 2001/02 AND 
COMMITMENT BUDGET 2003/04 – 2005/06 
 
The Executive has been notified of the latest projected outturn expenditure position 
for the financial year 2001/02 and the issues that are likely to impact on the Council’s 
budget in future years.  This represents a first step towards considering proposals for 
the budget strategy for 2003/04 and beyond. 
 
The finally approved expenditure level for 2001/02 amounted to £88.43 million and 
the provisional outturn expenditure is £88.712 million.  This represents a variation of 
£0.247 million after allowing for approved carry forwards and earmarked reserves. 
This represents an overall underspend of 0.3% against total planned expenditure and 
must be seen as a considerable achievement which fully justifies the corrective 
actions taken by the then Strategy and Policy Committee in the light of a predicted 
overspend last autumn of around £1.75 million. 
 
The Council is further advised that some unspent budget provision will be carried 
forward into the current year in respect of the match funding for Standards Fund 
Grant Allocations within Education.  It is currently estimated that £0.253 million will be 
carried forward subject to final completion of the grant claims for 2001/02. 
 
Looking ahead the Council’s base budget for 2002/03 is anticipated at £90.23 million 
rising in each of the three years to 2005/06 to £92.80 million excluding the impact of 
future inflation.  Because the government will not be consulting on, its proposed 
significant changes to the SSA methodology until September, it is very difficult to 
predict the level of resources that will be available next year.  This inevitably adds 
uncertainty to our financial planning.  However, at present, the best estimates remain 
consistent with the Medium Term Financial Strategy that the Council has been 
following for the last three years and the Executive will continue with the actions 
necessary for the Council to achieve a “soft landing” when expenditure must match 
the level of annually generated resources in three years time.  The next stage of this 
strategy will be considered at the July meeting. 
 

 
5 CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN 2001/02 
 

The Council has previously approved a Capital Programme for the period 2002/03 – 
2004/05 and the Executive has now reviewed the latest projected Capital Outturn 
expenditure position for 2001/02.  Inevitably there is a carry forward of approved 
expenditure which has not been incurred by 31 March in to the current year.  In 
reviewing the outturn, approval has been given to: 
 

 Carry forward of £6.935 million from the 2001/02 Capital Programme; 

 The provisional financing of capital expenditure from usable capital receipts, 
provision for credit liabilities, government grants/contributions and available 
Section 106 Funds; 

 The reallocation of town centre enhancements budget and CCTV budget to 
enable work to car park escalators to be carried out in the current year; 

8



 

 The allocation of rolling programme areas in the current year’s capital 
programme. 

 
In addition the Executive has noted that the release of Section 106 Funding for 
individual schemes currently requires approval by the full Council.  This has also 
been considered by the Constitution Review Group at a recent meeting who concur 
in the following recommendation: 
 
RECOMMENDATION – THAT INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBERS BE 
AUTHORISED TO APPROVE CAPITAL EXPENDITURE OF UP TO £250,000 FOR 
INDIVIDUAL SCHEMES FINANCED BY SECTION 106 MONIES, SUBJECT TO AN 
OVERALL LIMIT SPECIFIED IN THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME EACH YEAR. 

 
 
6 FINANCE BEST VALUE REVIEW 

 
The Finance Best Value Review commenced in January 2001 with a scoping 
document endorsed by the Members’ Panel on 18 June 2001.  Following discussions 
with the Best Value Inspector a review of procurement was also undertaken by a Sub 
Group as part of the Finance Review.  The review has now been completed and has 
been considered by the Executive which also received the advice from the Select 
Committee on Corporate and Resource Issues which considered the review on 13 
March 2002.  A number of significant issues have been identified as a result of the 
review and a comprehensive improvement plan has been drawn up to address those 
issues.  In total the review has produced 37 recommendations and a wide range of 
actions which have been incorporated in the improvement plan.  These actions will 
address the service and cost issues identified and, together with the implementation 
of the replacement financial system, will achieve annual revenue savings of £460,000 
by 2005/06 – a reduction in the cost of providing financial services of 11% compared 
to the current year.  As such the review must be seen as a major success, 
particularly as implementation of the proposals will maintain the robust financial 
controls that are a key feature of the Council’s management arrangements whilst 
increasing the flexibility and responsiveness of financial services. 

 
 
7 BRAKENHALE SCHOOL: RESOURCES FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 

The Executive Member for Education and the Director have been working closely 
with the governing body of Brakenhale School to secure and sustain improvements in 
school performance.  A paper was taken to the governing body at its meeting on 27 
May with a number of collaborative proposals which have been accepted by the 
governing body.  The approach used has also been endorsed by the DFES 
Standards and Effectiveness Unit.  A number of the agreed actions can only proceed 
with additional resources provided by the Council.  The Executive has carefully 
considered those elements of the proposed improvement programme and have 
agreed to the allocation of £97,000 from the contingency fund in the current year for 
these purposes.  In addition in order to ensure continuity of funding as far as 
possible, the Executive have agreed that within the overall budget framework 
approved by the Council, a sum of up to £0.172 million will be included in the 
commitment budget for 2003/04, subject to the availability of government funding, 
reducing to £0.145 million and to £0.082 million in 2004/05 and 2005/06 respectively. 

 
 
 

9



 

8 LOOKING AHEAD 
 
The Executive’s next Forward Plan for a four month period will be published on 1 July 
and will be available for inspection at Easthampstead House.  Currently the 
Executive will be dealing with several important strategies and other topics at its July 
meeting and members should contact the appropriate Executive member or Director 
if they require further information at this stage. 
 
In addition of course the negotiations on the Council’s Public Service Agreement are 
now reaching a conclusion and I would remind members that the Inspection Team 
dealing with our Comprehensive Performance Assessment will be carrying out the 
onsite field work from 15 – 26 July. 

 
 
 
 
Doc. Ref 
committee/cttees/docs may 2002 – april 2003/council/26 june 2002/executive report to council.doc 

10



11

Agenda Item 6



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



This page is intentionally left blank



 (ITEM 7) 

COUNCIL 

26 JUNE 2002 

 

 

RELEASE OF SECTION 106 FUNDING 

(Director of Corporate Services/Director of Leisure Services) 

 

 

1 PURPOSE OF DECISION 

 
This report seeks approval to the release of Section 106 funding for the following 
projects. 

 
(i) Westmorland Park – Installation of basketball net – kick about area and new 

paths 
 
(ii) A grant to Bracknell Town Council to improve the open space in Calfridus 

Way. 
 

 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 That: 

 
(i) Approval be given to the release of a total of £25,000 of money held under 

Section 106 for the provision of an open access unit facility at Westmorland 
Park, North Bracknell. 

 
 (ii) Approval be given to the release of an amount of £40,000 of money held 

under Section 106 to Bracknell Town Council as a grant for improving 
drainage at Calfridus Way playing fields. 

 

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 Authorisation from the full Council is necessary for the release of Section 106 

funding in respect of two schemes. 
 
 (i) To improve provision for young people at Westmorland Park. 
 
 (ii) To improve standard of pitches at Calfridus Way playing fields. 
 

 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
 None – both projects are considered to be appropriate uses of the available Section 

106 funding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

165

Agenda Item 7



5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Westmorland Park, North Bracknell 
 
 Subject to the release of Section 106 funding, a tarmacadam area with basketball 

net and nearby seating will be installed.  The proposed location is on land north of 
the existing play area.  Because this land is sloping a “cut and fill” operation is 
needed to create a flat area suitable for ball games.  In addition a new section of 
footpath connecting the youth area to the entrance will be provided. 

 
 The site has existing provision for sport, walking and children’s play so this will 

extend the range of users of the site.  This provision has been included in the 
management plan for the site. 

 
 Appropriate Section 106 funds are available from developments at Gough’s Lane 

(£22,350), Shoreland Oaks (£494) and Warfield YNOA7 (£22,156). 
 
 Calfridus Way Recreation Ground 
 
 A new housing development is to be completed at Broad Lane which will increase 

demand on the Calfridus Way recreation ground.  Section 106 funding has been 
secured to improve recreation facilities within 1.5k of the site.  Some of this money 
has already been allocated for Lily Hill Park but the remaining funding is available 
for use as a grant to Bracknell Town Council for improvement works at Calfridus 
Way recreation ground.  Bracknell Town Council have requested that funds be 
made available to improve drainage at the site, the total cost of the scheme is 
estimated at £40,000.  A study of recreation pitch provision in the Borough in 1999 
concluded that there was a need to improve the standard of pitches in this borough 
so as to make better use of the existing resources. 

 
 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS   
  
 Borough Solicitor 
 
 There are no specific legal implications arising in the case of Westmorland Park.  In 

the case of Calfridus Way, the proposed grant is authorised by Section 19 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 
 Borough Finance Officer 
 
 Section 106 funding is available in respect of both schemes as described. 
 
 Access Implications 
 
 The provision of a new tarmacadam footpath at Westmorland Park would facilitate 

easy access.  There are no relevant access issues in relation to the project at 
Calfridus Way recreation ground. 

 
 

7. PRINCIPAL GROUPS CONSULTED  

 
 Westmorland Park User Forum 

166



 Youth & Community Service 
 

8. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
 The Youth & Community services actively support the proposed provision at 

Westmorland Park.  At the user forum there were mixed views with the sports clubs 
expressing some reservations and the parish council being in favour.  No 
consultation was carried in relation to the scheme at Calfridus Way. 

 
 
 
Background Papers 
Reports by Director of Leisure Services  
 
Contact for further information 
Malcolm Biggs– 01344 352006 
Malcolm.biggs@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Helen Tranter, Leisure Services – 01344 354102 
Helen.tranter@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Doc. Ref 
??? 

167

mailto:Helen.tranter@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 29 May 2002
	5 Executive Report
	6 Budget and Policy Framework
	C020626 062 Policy & Perf Plan 02-03

	7 Release of Section 106 Funding

